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CHAPTER 4—SOCIAL MOVEMENTS OF THE 1930S
History: top-down or bottom-up?

One of the greatest historical distortions is the concentration on the New Deal and government policies as the focus of the 1930s when there was enormous activity “from below” that is often not mentioned or considered in isolation—what should this course be called: “History of the 1930s” or “The New Deal?”

It can be argued that most of the New Deal legislation was in response to the social movements from below and that it was an attempt to head off revolution by making concessions and establishing a social structure that would restore confidence in the capitalist system—looking at this lesson of history would dramatically change what individuals could/should do today in similar economic circumstances
There is also a great deal of “history” that claims the most significant part of The Depression was, well, depression:”In the inner lives of Americans, a deep stain of depression was one mark of the Depression, a tendency for people to turn the crisis inward, to blame themselves, to target their own shortcomings and failures, not those of the system.. . . ‘The dominant thing was this helpless despair and submission. There was anger and rebellion among a few but, by and large, the quiet desperation and submission.’” (Dickstein, p. 224)
The social movements of the 1930s show this statement to be not historically accurate.

Another major historical issue is the “Big Bang” theory, advanced by Kennedy, among others, that claims social movements “just erupt,” and people have no way of knowing when. This is altogether false: the social movements of the 1930s, especially the union movement, were the product of decades of patient organizational work, by members of the Union TEA (Time, Effort and Aggravation) Party, and of momentary victories and momentary defeats. The whole acceptance of unionism was an issue that was “won” when the War Labor Board functioned during WWI, and was “lost” in the strikes of 1919 and the red scare and in the 1920s, with the prevalence of The American Plan and the Employee Representation Plans (ERPS).

Another enduring issue is: government relief or self-help to solve the problem of under consumption, and thus resolve the Depression: federal support for unionism allowed for self-help, in the American tradition of self-reliance, and made direct relief payments unnecessary. At the same time, unionism was the most controversial movement and, to the extent that federal intervention supported it, this federal intervention was also controversial.

Cf. the 112 paper on Rutherford B. Hayes and the 1877 railroad strike.

Roosevelt didn’t come up with all those progressive programs on his own
by Sarah Anderson posted June 5, 2009
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	Farmers crowd around the auctioneer at a foreclosure sale in Nebraska, intimidating potential bidders so they can buy the farm for a low price. Farms bought at such “penny auctions” were returned to their owners.
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During the Great Depression, my grandfather ran a butter creamery in rural Minnesota. Growing up, I heard how a group of farmers stormed in one day and threatened to burn the place down if he didn’t stop production. I had no idea who those farmers were or why they had done that—it was just a colorful story.

Now I know that they were with the Farmers’ Holiday Association, a protest movement that flourished in the Midwest in 1932 and 1933. They were best known for organizing “penny auctions,” where hundreds of farmers would show up at a foreclosure sale, intimidate potential bidders, buy the farm themselves for a pittance, and return it to the original owner.

The action in my grandfather’s creamery was part of a withholding strike. By choking off delivery and processing of food, the Farmers’ Holiday Association aimed to boost pressure for legislation to ensure that farmers would make a reasonable profit for their goods. Prices were so low that farmers were dumping milk and burning corn for fuel or leaving it in the field.

The Farmers’ Holiday Association never got the legislation it wanted, but its direct actions lit a fire under politicians. Several governors and then Congress passed moratoriums on farm foreclosures. President Franklin Delano Roosevelt, telling advisors that he feared an “agrarian revolution,” rushed through reforms that helped millions of farmers stay on their land. These new policies regulated how much land was planted or kept in reserve. Although it was eventually replaced by the massive subsidies that today favor large agribusiness and encourage overproduction, Roosevelt’s original program supported some of the most prosperous and stable decades for U.S. farmers.

This is just one example of how strong grassroots organizing during the last severe U.S. economic crisis was key in pushing some of that era’s most important progressive reforms. Social Security is another such case.

The Depression had been particularly tough on the elderly, millions of whom lost their pensions in the stock crash and had few options for employment. Roosevelt, however, felt the nation was not ready for a costly and logistically challenging pension program.

Then a retired California doctor named Francis E. Townsend wrote to the editor of his local paper, proposing a pension system that would also stimulate the economy by offering $200 per month to every citizen over 60, on the condition that they spend the entire amount within 30 days. The idea spread like wildfire. Thousands of Townsend Clubs around the country wrote millions of letters to the President and Congress demanding the pension system Townsend suggested.

Roosevelt, reportedly concerned that Townsend might join with populist Louisiana Senator Huey Long to challenge him in the 1936 election, eventually changed his position. Although he rejected the details of the Townsend Plan, Roosevelt pushed through legislation in 1935 that created Social Security, still one of the country’s most important anti-poverty programs.

Seventy-five years later, these stories offer important lessons for a country again mired in economic crisis. Neither the Farmers’ Holiday Association nor the Townsend Clubs got exactly what they wanted. But their bold demands and action moved the policy debate much further than it would have gone had these social movements not existed.

Like President Barack Obama, Roosevelt was an extremely popular leader, particularly among the disadvantaged who saw him as their champion. But it wasn’t enough to have a generally good guy in the White House. Likewise today, our chances of achieving real change have more to do with the power of social movements than with the occupant of the Oval Office. Obama has opened some doors of opportunity, but to go beyond economic recovery to a more just and sustainable economy, we’ll need to follow in the footsteps of Depression-era activists and organize around bold ideas.
Sarah Anderson wrote this article as part of The New Economy, the Summer 2009 issue of YES! Magazine. Sarah directs the Global Economy Project at the Institute for Policy Studies


UNIONISM

http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=WyUagbsg-HI&feature=related (3:59) –Woody Guthrie sings Vigilante Man, with strike newsreels

The history of unionism is the history of self-help, with intermittent support from a government so, in many ways, it reflects Hooverism but, of course, organization of workers challenges the power structure and the division of wealth in society, a whole new—and for the bosses—unpleasant dynamic

The New Deal is a crucial period for the development of unionism because
1. Workers moved for industrial unions and challenged the most powerful national corporations, like GM and US Steel

2. Workers challenged, in turn, the officers of the old craft unions

3. The development of a federal labor relations policy and the direct involvement of even the president of the US, who began to acknowledge the “right” to representation although FDR was squeamish about tactics like the sit-down strikes
4. The influence of socialism and communist groups in the organizing. The Communist party changed directions and instead of advocating separate unions, joined in a coalition with other radical groups, like the old IWW, the Socialist Party, the American Labor Party, which emphasized organizing both employed workers while encouraging unemployed workers not to scab

5. The historiography of the period is intense as each political group claimed leadership while others emphasized the importance of the federal legal structure
Great site—Labor in the 1930s-- http://newdeal.feri.org/laborbib/index.htm  

Comparison with 1920s—by Frank Lovell (March, 1986)
In the search for cures to the seemingly mysterious sickness that is stripping the unions of their vitality today, there is constant reference to the plague of the 1920s that sapped the strength of the union movement then, and to the subsequent revitalization of the movement in the 1930s.

This comparison of the labor movement today with that of the 1920s is as good as any other beginning. Along with that a better understanding of the transformation in the early 1930s will most certainly help in the organization now of a similar transformation.
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Throughout the decade of the 1920s, as now, the union movement was in steady decline. One of the reasons for this was the wartime servility of the union leadership. During World War I the craft unions seemed to prosper. A series of strikes in 1917 prompted the Wilson administration to set up a Mediation Commission which in turn led to the establishment of the War Labor Board in early 1918. Samuel Gompers, as AFL president, endorsed the main objective of the board, which was to prevent strikes. In exchange the government tacitly recognized the AFL unions as collective bargaining agencies in the war industries. As a result the unions gained over a million new members, reaching a peak of more than five million in 1920. Union treasuries swelled commensurately as dues payments increased.

Gompers and other union leaders began to take an active part in affairs of state, serving the government in their capacity as representatives of labor. Gompers became president of the American Alliance for Labor and Democracy (AALD), a “labor front” sponsored by the Wilson administration to drum up pro-war sentiment among working people. Later Gompers embarked on a mission to Europe, at the behest of the administration, to bolster the war effort when European workers were showing signs of war weariness. For these and other services to the U.S. ruling class Gompers gained a certain renown among heads of state and captains of industry, but the workers he claimed to represent and the unions he was supposed to serve gained nothing.

This ingratiating performance was repeated in almost exact replica during World War II by the successors of Gompers in the AFL and the CIO unions. Both William Green for the AFL and Philip Murray for the CIO welcomed Roosevelt’s War Labor Board, accepted the wartime no-strike pledge, and fully endorsed the imperialist war aims of the U.S. government. After the war they participated in the stabilization of capitalism in Europe and in the cold war against the Soviet Union. And, of course, the union movement appeared to benefit during and after World War II. When the two labor bodies merged and founded the AFL-CIO in 1955 the new organization boasted a membership of 15 million, and it was growing. Some of the big industrial unions had millions in their treasuries. All this had the appearance of a repeat performance of the unions in World War I, but with one important difference. In the post-World War II period the unions continued to grow and the membership continued to benefit for three decades, until about 1975.
http://www.marxists.org/history/etol/document/fit/usunions.htm (Lovell’s article)
After World War I labor-management cooperation did not last at all. The employers of that time made only modest objections to union representation and the collection of union dues in the war industries during the war, but tolerating unions in private industry during peacetime was another matter. The ruling class in this country in those years strongly favored what they called “the American plan,” meaning no unions allowed.

The AFL craft unions affiliated to the Chicago Federation of Labor sought to organize the packinghouse workers in 1917-18 with some limited success. This was due largely to the extraordinary talents of William Z. Foster, who was the AFL organizer in charge. When Foster, with the endorsement and backing of Gompers, attempted to organize the steel industry in 1919 through the AFL craft union setup, the effort failed. The steel strike was joined by a third of a million steelworkers, who closed the mills in 50 cities in ten states, and it lasted 108 days. But it was eventually crushed by the steel barons, who refused to negotiate, and compliant government agencies.

Thus the decade of the 1920s began. It soon became clear that the employers were determined to destroy the union movement in order to slash the wartime wage standard which was considered far too high, and to increase their already excessive profits. In some instances it appeared that the employers deliberately reduced wages to provoke strikes. They then invoked the police power of the government to break the strike and destroy the union.

What has been called “the greatest strike of the decade,” the railway shopmen’s strike, was provoked by a drastic wage cut in 1922. Almost from the beginning the federal government intervened on the side of the railroad companies. Attorney General Harry Daugherty secured a federal restraining order against the strike. Anyone who was in any way connected with the shop crafts was forbidden to do or say anything in furtherance of the strike. The legal basis of the injunction was the Sherman Anti-Trust Act. Any striker or supporter of the strike could be charged with conspiracy against the free flow of trade and commerce. The railroads remained free to dictate wages and working conditions, and to hire strikebreakers and an army of private guards to herd them on the job. The strike was crushed and many strikers blacklisted, never able to get their jobs back. In this way one union after another was destroyed.
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When Samuel Gompers died in 1924 his successor as AFL president, William Green, found himself in charge of an organizational structure that was hardly more than a shell. He sought to rebuild the organization through close cooperation with the employers. Less than a year in office, he announced his willingness to cooperate in any joint program to make production more efficient. “More and more,” he said in 1925, “organized labor is coming to believe that its best interests are promoted through concord rather than conflict.”

The employing class was of a different mind. They saw no reason to collaborate with unions. They sought other ways to increase efficiency and improve profits. The textile industry is an example. This industry had been highly organized in New England. In the early 1920s the employers began moving their mills to the South where they found the complete collaboration of local and state officials in the discouragement of all attempts to unionize far more profitable than the proffered cooperation of AFL union officials.
By 1927 67 percent of all U.S. cotton textile production was concentrated in the South where sporadic strikes were frequent but union contracts unknown. Because of overproduction the textile industry was already listed among the “sick industries.” Competition forced wages below subsistence levels. In 1929, as the “open shop decade” came to a close, the average mill wage in the South was $12.83 for a 60-hour week. This condition tended to depress wages in that sector of the industry that remained in the North.

[image: image7.jpg]“Women's history is buried in
parenthesis,” says Krig.

"Women generated support for
the Teamsters from other unions.
They did a lot of the politicizing
of people while getting services
and support 1o them. These
‘women were pretty amazing. "

PHOTO AT LEFT: The Minneapolis
strke inspired strikes across the country,
including these striking textile workers in
Greensboro, GA, some of the more than
400,000 workers walked off the job. The
Roosevelt administration sent more than
40,000 troops to attack the strikers,
Killing 16 and wounding hundreds more.
(Courtesy: Schomberg Archive)



The best organized and most nearly successful strike of the decade was the textile strike at the Botany mills in Passaic, New Jersey, which began in January 1926 as a result of a 10 percent wage cut--The AFL United Textile Workers (UTW) and other textile unions had no presence in Passaic at the time. But an organizing committee, calling itself the United Front Committee of Textile Workers, began agitation against the wage cut and soon recruited 1,000 members. When the committee presented demands to the employers to rescind the wage cut, for time-and-a-half for overtime, and no discrimination against union members, the bosses fired all 45 members of the committee. That was when the strike began. Five thousand Botany workers walked out and spread the strike to the other mills in Passaic. Soon more than 15,000 workers were on strike, tying up the whole Passaic textile industry.

The Passaic strike was organized and led from the beginning by a member of the Communist Party, Albert Weisbord. It was endorsed and supported by the CP-controlled Trade Union Educational League. William Z. Foster, who was in charge of CP trade union work at the time, later described the strike in the following way:

“By terrorism and duplicity the bosses were unable to break the strike so, after six months of it, in July, they decided on a maneuver to defeat the workers; they announced that they would deal with the strikers provided the Communist leadership was removed and the strikers were affiliated to the U.T.W. To agree to take out the mass leaders was a difficult condition for us, but the strike was in a hard situation; so, refusing to let the issue of communism stand in the way of a settlement, we called the bosses’ bluff and withdrew the official leader of the strike, and we also affiliated the workers to the U.T.W. 
“The employers, seeing that their maneuver had failed, then stated they would not deal with the A. F. of L. either. In consequence, the strike dragged on, bitterly fought (under our leadership —the U.T.W. doing nothing) until December 13, when the big Botany Mills capitulated to the union by restoring the wage cut, agreeing not to discriminate against union members and recognizing grievance committees. The other mills soon followed suit Thus ended almost a year of struggle. It was a hard-won, if only partial, victory, but it produced little tangible results in organization. The union, weakened by the long struggle and neglected by the U.T.W. conservative McMahon leadership, was unable to follow up with a vigorous campaign for organization and against blacklisting.” 

In his well-documented book on U.S. workers in the 1920s and early ’30s, The Lean Years, Irving Bernstein summarizes what happened to the AFL. “A significant feature of labor’s decline in the twenties,” he says, “is that it struck especially hard at organizations that were either wholly or predominantly industrial in structure. This was true of the coal miners, of Mine Mill, of the Textile Workers, of the ILGWU, and of the Brewery Workers. At the same time many craft unions either held their own or made gains. The building trades, for example, advanced from a membership of 78,950 in 1923 to 919,000 in 1929, the printing trades from 150,900 to 162,500, and the railway organizations declined modestly from 596,600 to 564,600. This shift in membership strength was reflected increasingly within the American Federation of Labor. Craft organizations, with their conservative outlook on both internal and general matters, came to dominate both the Executive Council and the conventions of the AFL, with the inevitable impact upon policy.”
http://www.marxists.org/history/etol/document/fit/usunions.htm 

Lost newsreel of the Botany strike 

http://www.bing.com/videos/search?q=pasaaic+textile+strike&view=detail&mid=B6CF4DD88800060E4984B6CF4DD88800060E4984&first=0&FORM=LKVR (3:39)
Mine Mill Smelter Workers-- was originally organized in the western states of Colorado, Utah, Idaho, and South Dakota, a descendent of the Western Federation of Miners. It was a left-leaning organization that was often popularly considered radical; some of its national leaders were affiliated with the Communist Party. As with other unions, Mine Mill's organizational efforts were hurt by anti-unionism in the 1920s. After passage of New Deal labor legislation in the 1930s, unions' abilities to organize were enhanced, and labor organizations, including Mine Mill, expanded efforts to unite workers. 

In July 1933, Jim Lipscomb, a white former Alabama miner who had been blacklisted for his organizing efforts in the 1920s, returned to Bessemer to practice law and assist in launching the drive of the International Union of Mine, Mill, and Smelter Workers in the Birmingham District. An initial mass meeting near the Tennessee Coal, Iron and Railroad Company (TCI) mines received overwhelming support from the ore miners. The support came about because the Employee Representation Plans (ERPs)—unions organized with the approval of the company in an effort to minimize independent union organization—were company controlled, and the United Mine Workers Union was advancing the cause of workers in the coalfields. There were approximately 5,000 iron ore miners in the area, of whom 80 percent were black. They were employed by the Sloss-Sheffield Steel Company, Republic Steel, the Woodward Iron Company, and TCI, a division of United States Steel. 
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The Sloss-Sheffield Local 109 and the Republic Steel Raimund Local 121 were the first to be chartered on July 17 and July 25, 1933, respectively. The TCI locals in Ishkooda, Wenonah, and Muscoda were all chartered less than one month later. The black miners began defecting, en masse, from the ERPs and affiliating with Mine Mill. Some whites did as well, but they were confronted with the communist label and racial epithets. Some white workers remained with Mine Mill, but many whites yielded to the pressure and returned to the ERPs. Thus Mine Mill was overwhelmingly black and the ERPs were practically all white. 

From its earliest days, members of Mine Mill were harassed on the job. Complaints from the union leaders included unjustified discharges of members, threats, intimidation and verbal abuse by the mine superintendent and foremen, increased work-load of union members, layoffs for minor and unjustified reasons, placing of men on less desirable jobs, refusal to reinstate discharged workers, and the company's failure to bargain collectively. These complaints, among others, led to a strike in 1934, but the effort failed to substantially improve working conditions or the union's relationship with the company. 
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A second strike occurred in 1936 because of mistreatment of union workers, less than desirable working conditions, a TCI-initiated "incentive plan," and a lack of company recognition of the union. Workers filed affidavits with the U.S. Senate Committee on Education and Labor describing violent activities during the strikes. The two strikes and subsequent anti-union activities by the company nearly destroyed Mine Mill in Alabama. However, in 1938 the National Labor Relations Board (NLRB) ruled in the union's favor, reinstating 160 miners who had been fired for their union involvement and participation in the strikes. The workers also received back pay amounting to an average of approximately $700.00, collectively more than $100,000. This victory led to Mine Mill being recognized by TCI as the workers' bargaining agent.      Paradoxically, this victory led to strife within Mine Mill. White workers who had been members of the company unions now joined the predominantly black Mine Mill and sought to wrestle control away. The decade between 1938 and 1948 witnessed the internal struggle for control of Mine Mill in Alabama. In 1941, TCI built an Ore Conditioning Plant in Wenonah and staffed it with only white workers who established a Mine Mill local. Workers' jobs replaced during this decade were usually refilled with white workers. This practice resulted in a ratio change between 1938 and 1949 from 80 percent black to 20 percent white to approximately even percentages. 
            Section 7 of the NIRA supported unionization and the National Labor Board was created to enforce it--More often than not, an employer's refusal to bargain was the issue. Holding representation elections, much less establishing bargaining units or determining majority status, was not even considered by the Board.  Employers, however, quickly established company unions and announced that these were the only proper representatives of the workers. Unions responded by holding strikes, demanding to be recognized as the organization of the workers' choosing and immediate negotiations. Large numbers of workers were summarily fired for striking. The NLB quickly settled on a strategy of suggesting elections as a way of determining majority status and breaking a collective bargaining deadlock.

The NLB's opportunity came when the Full-Fashioned Hosiery Workers Union launched an organizing drive in the summer of 1933 in the silk stocking mills around Reading, Pennsylvania. The employers refused to recognize the union, and 10,000 workers went on strike. On August 10, 1933, the NLB mediated a settlement.

Known as the "Reading Formula," the settlement consisted of four parts: 
(1) That the union calls off the strike; 
(2) That all employees be rehired immediately, without retaliation; 
(3) That the NLB hold elections in which the workers would vote by secret ballot for their own representatives, and that both parties would negotiate a collective bargaining agreement covering wages, hours and working conditions; and 
(4) That in the event of any disagreement on any matter, the parties would submit the dispute to the NLB for binding arbitration. 
The Reading Formula proved useful in settling large numbers of labor disputes, including strikes in silk mills in Paterson, New Jersey; silk mills in Allentown, Pennsylvania; tool and die factories in Detroit, Michigan; and coal mines in Illinois. In most cases, the union won the election. 
But within months, a large number of employers refused to cooperate with the NLB. The NLB relied on enforcement of its orders through the NRA (which only had the power to remove so-called Blue Eagle industrial code approval from a manufacturer) or prosecution by the U.S. Department of Justice. These weak enforcement powers encouraged employer resistance. In July 1933, the Weirton Steel Company held a private election rather than submit to one monitored by the NLB. The Budd Manufacturing Company established a company union and then refused to bargain with the AFL affiliate in the plant.
       The Roosevelt administration was alarmed. The first New Deal, 1933-35, was an effort to revive industrial production and finances by giving federal funds to banks and imposing corporatism upon industrial relations in which labor was assigned a subordinate role. The National Industrial Recovery Act(NIRA) set up tri-partite industry boards—business, labor and public members—to regulate wages, prices and profits. With the exceptions of the apparel and mining industries, labor had little leverage over board decisions. Workers’ wages were often frozen, and their power to impose better working conditions was severely limited. Radicals judged the NIRA as an American version of industrial fascism because it paralleled the Italian example. This perception was reinforced when, after promising to bring textile employers to the bargaining table, Roosevelt persuaded the AFL union leaders to call off the 400,000 worker strike. He reneged on his promise and 7000 activists were blacklisted from the industry, many of them Southern women. Roosevelt’s betrayal contributed to the tough sledding unions faced in the American South for decades.

         According to historian Richard Hofstadter Roosevelt, therefore, “stumbled” into social reform. The mass strikes prompted pro-administration Congress members to cooperate with the administration in proposing a new form of regulation: the Wagner Act (NLRA) granted workers the right to form unions “of their own choosing” and provided a series of procedures for determining whether and how workers could form unions that would be recognized by law and therefore by their employers. It also encouraged collective bargaining to resolve labor disputes.
Stanley Aronowitz. “Reversing the Labor Movement’s Free Fall” 

http://logosjournal.com/2013/aronowitz-spring/ 
To strengthen the NLB's powers vis-a-vis employers, President Roosevelt issued Executive Order 6511 on December 16, 1933. The order ratified the Board's prior activities, including its decisions and representational elections. The order also authorized the Board to "settle by mediation, conciliation or arbitration all controversies between employers and employees which tend to impede the purpose of the National Industrial Recovery Act." But E.O. 6511 said nothing about elections and did not address the Board's enforcement powers.

Roosevelt issued a new order, E.O. 6580, on February 1, 1934. The order gave the Board explicit power to authorize, upon a showing by a substantial number of employees, representational elections to determine majority status. The order appeared to give the winning organization exclusive representation for employees in the bargaining unit, but this interpretation was widely contested. Worse, Roosevelt made the off-hand public comment that the government was seeking to check the growth of company unions. This caused a firestorm of discontent among business owners, who began an anti-Wagner campaign. 

Hugh Johnson was forced to issue a statement denying that the NRA or the administration was seeking to stamp out company unions. His statement also rejected the concept of exclusive representation.

The NLB's interpretation of Section 7(a), however, increasing diverged from that espoused by the NRA. On March 1, 1934, the Board issued its decision in Denver Tramway Corporation. The Board held that, where a union had obtained a majority of the votes cast in a government-sponsored representational election, any collective bargaining agreement would have to cover all employees in the bargaining unit. 

Until Denver Tramway, unions had bargained only for their own members. A union which represented only half the bus drivers in a company, for example, would bargain a contract only on behalf of its members. Another union could represent the other bus drivers. In many cases, several unions represented the same workers in one company, each union bargaining a different contract for however many members it represented.

Denver Tramway was a major turning point in American labor law because it established the rule of exclusive representation. This rule said that a union which won the majority of votes in an election would win the right to represent all workers. Even when several unions competed against one another and no union won a majority of the [image: image10.jpg]


votes, the union with the most votes still won the right to represent all workers

FDR quickly disavowed the Board's exclusive representation rule. The United Auto Workers had organized more than 50,000 workers in the automobile industry in 1933. But the auto companies rejected the union's demand for recognition, set up company unions and refused to allow the NLB to mediate. Roosevelt intervened personally in the dispute. On March 25, 1934, Roosevelt announced a settlement that provided for proportional, rather than exclusive, representation—thus giving the company unions equal footing with the Auto Workers. The agreement also stripped the NLB of its jurisdiction over the auto industry. Worse, the agreement provided no authority for holding elections, and thus no means of determining which organizations truly represented workers.
The "Labor Disputes Act" was introduced in the Senate by Senator Wagner on March 1, 1934. The bill provided statutory authority for the existence of the NLB, and gave it exclusive enforcement authority over Section 7(a) of the NIRA. The NLB was given the authority to hold elections and was also authorized to prohibit acts of coercion by the employer against employees and required employers to bargain in good faith with the duly elected representatives of workers. A wave of large strikes swept the country in April and May, 1934, and a significant number of them were over the recognition issue. 
Senator David I. Walsh, Democrat from Massachusetts and chair of the Senate Committee on Education and Labor, quickly wrote a substitute bill, the "National Industrial Adjustment Bill,” which contained some protections for workers and unions but permitted both exclusive and proportional representation—even though the bill had strong support, including Senator Wagner, there was huge opposition from industry and the press
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A “crisis,” according to Irving Bernstein, in the steel industry forced FDR to act—the industrial union supporters in the Amalgamated Association of Iron, Steel and Tin Workers called a rank-and-file conference in Pittsburgh on March 25, 1934, with support from Harold Ruttenberg and Harvey O’Connor, who had been indicted for  criminal anarchy for leaflets he published during the Seattle general strike of 1919, with 257 delegates from 50 lodges to plan demand for recognition, supported by a strike if necessary—one of the delegates criticized President Michael Tighe by accusing him of being “too damn conservative to be an Irishman”—the AA convention opened on April 17 but the militants could not prevail but got a resolution passed that the union would ask for recognition from all the steel companies on May 21 and unless the companies conceded recognition and negotiated contracts by June 10, a national strike would be called on June 16—after the demands for recognition on May 16 were refused, the officers of the AA appealed to the Labor Board but Hugh Johnson responded that the steel companies were in accordance with the steel code—when NLB hearings were held on May 29, the officers demanded FDR’s personal intervention—the next two weeks were chaotic as Hugh Johnson called Tighe “yellow” and red-baited while the union officers denounced Johnson as “a big wind bag” and called the NRA “The National Run-Around”—the steel companies prepared for the strike by fortifying the mills and by holding bogus elections in which loyal workers voted against any strike--
There was an anxiety for Congress to adjourn for the year but many progressives felt the legislation was not strong enough and introduced what became known as the Wagner Act—on June 14, FDR had William Green to the White House to promise the creation of a steel labor relations board so Green went to the AA convention and demanded that the strike order be rescinded—a big debate in Congress and LaFollette referred to “industrial strife in the country” and urged that the bill be strengthened with Wagner’s original amendments so that “the New Deal would not be strangled in the house of its own friends”—FDR Public Resolution 44 on June 16 with four basic sections:

1. Boards to investigate charges and controversies

2. Board could hold secret ballot elections under section 7 (a)

3. Board can make any additional rules

4. Civil and criminal penalties with fines and imprisonment for violation of the law

and issued Executive Order 6751 on June 28, establishing a National Steel Labor Relations Board and Executive Order 6763 on June 29, 1934 to abolish the NLB. In its place, it established the National Labor Relations Board. The new NLRB had only three members: Lloyd K. Garrison, dean of the University of Wisconsin Law School, was its chairman; Harry A. Millis, professor of economics at the University of Chicago, and Edwin S. Smith, Commissioner of Labor and Industry for the state of Massachusetts, were its members
The question came up in class, spring, 2012, about what an Executive Order is-thanks to Julia Hammid for this background

http://uspolitics.about.com/od/presidenc1/a/executive_order.htm
In 1935, the Supreme Court ruled the NIRA unconstitutional so Wagner introduced The Wagner Act, which later became The National Labor Relations Act and was found constitutional in the Jones and Laughlin case after FDR threatened to expand the Supreme Court in 1937--
The railroad unions also wanted improvements in the 1926 Railway Labor act because, by 1933, 147 out of 233 railroads maintained company unions, virtually all of them established before 1926 and totally dominated the organizations: wrote the constitutions, collected the dues, enforced yellow-dog contracts and maintained blacklists
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Screen Actors Guild--Boris Karloff became famous as Frankenstein and in May, 1933, he was one of the founding members of the Screen Actors Guild, whose first meeting was held in Karloff’s garage-- his daughter recounts that, due to the Hollywood studio chiefs' distrust of unions and their attempts to keep them from forming, he always carried a roll of dimes in his pocket because he had to use pay phones when conducting union business, since he knew his home phone had been tapped—by June, 1933, he walked away from his Universal Studios contract after being told that his salary of $1,000/week would be cut-- a meeting in March 1933 of six actors (Berton Churchill, Charles Miller, Grant Mitchell, Ralph Morgan, Alden Gay, and Kenneth Thomson) led to the guild's foundation. Three months later, three of the six and eighteen others became the guild's first officers and board of directors: Ralph Morgan (its first president), Alden Gay, Kenneth Thomson, Alan Mowbray (who personally funded the organization when it was first founded and is seated at left in the photo of the first  Executive Board), Leon Ames, Tyler Brooke, Clay Clement, James Gleason, Lucile Webster Gleason, Boris Karloff (reportedly influenced by long hours suffered during the filming of Frankenstein), Claude King, Noel Madison, Reginald Mason, Bradley Page, Willard Robertson, Ivan Simpson, C. Aubrey Smith, Charles Starrett, Richard Tucker, Arthur Vinton, Morgan Wallace and Lyle Talbot. http://www.sagaftra.org/the-first-board-1933 
May 9, 1937--Hollywood studio mogul Louis B. Mayer, the head of MGM and the first person in history to be paid $1 million a year (for nine years from 1937, when he earned $1,300,000—equivalent to $20,760,880 today) recognized the Screen Actors Guild.  SAG leaders reportedly were bluffing when they told Mayer that 99 percent of all actors would walk out the next morning unless he dealt with the union.  Some 5,000 actors attended a victory gathering the following day at Hollywood Legion Stadium; a day later, SAG membership increased 400 percent—Mayer was known as a ruthless enforcer of law salaries and was later described by Elizabeth Taylor as “a monster” 
Many high-profile actors refused to join SAG initially. This changed when the producers made an agreement amongst themselves not to bid competitively for talent. A pivotal meeting, at the home of Frank Morgan (Ralph's brother, who played the title role in The Wizard of Oz), is what gave SAG its critical mass. Prompted by Eddie Cantor's insistence, at that meeting, that any response to that producer's agreement help all actors, not just the already established ones, it took only three weeks for SAG membership to go from around 80 members to more than 4,000. Cantor's participation was critical, particularly because of his friendship with the recently-elected President Franklin D. Roosevelt. After several years and the passage of the National Labor Relations Act, the producers agreed to negotiate with SAG in 1937.
Here are some great testimonials from 1937 from members of SAG:

http://www.sagaftra.org/early-members-1937 --here is one example

Anthony Quinn

[image: image13.jpg]


I got my first break in 1936 when I did The Plainsman, which was directed by Cecil B. De Mille. I won the part by speaking the wildest Cheyenne gibberish. It was very difficult for Latinos in those days. The roughest times came in the early '40s when Van Johnson was the leading man from MGM and every studio was looking for blue-eyed actors with light brown hair to play the American leads. All the dark people like myself were relegated to play the villains. Over the years I became friends with a lot of the Guild's officers, like Jimmy Cagney, Charlton Heston, Ronald Reagan, and Ricardo Montalban. I know what it's like to work without a union. My first job in pictures was as an extra for $8 a day. They took advantage of you, so I'm a strong supporter of SAG.

1934 STRIKES
http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=w7exxdnRbw0&feature=related (1:02) red-baiting Hearst newsreel on the 1934 strikes
1. The Toledo Auto-Lite strike (April 12-June 3)— On March 4, the four automotive FLUs voted to strike unless management recognized their union, instituted a 20 percent wage increase and reinstated all workers fired for union activity--Roosevelt ordered the National Labor Board to hear the workers' grievances, and the FLUs postponed the strike.[7] Roosevelt himself stepped [image: image14.jpg]The Story
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into the negotiations. On March 25, Roosevelt announced the creation of an Automobile Labor Board composed of one representative from management, one representative from labor, and a "neutral third party" to review allegations of anti-union activity. Roosevelt endorsed management's proposal to permit the recognition of company unions and the principle of proportional representation--Federal Labor Union 18384 of the AFL was a multi-employer union, so it could strike one employer while remaining financially solvent—on February 23, 1934, the Auto-Lite members engaged in a recognition strike to win a 10 percent wage increase. Nearly all FLU members at Auto-Lite walked out. The strike lasted only five days. The employees returned to work after management agreed to a 5 percent wage increase and to negotiate a contract by April 1, 1934. Both parties agreed to negotiate further over wages (the union demanded an additional 20 percent wage increase), seniority rights, the closed shop, improved working conditions, union recognition and an end to discrimination against union members and supporters—
FLU 18384 authorized a second strike, to begin on April 12, 1934. This time, only a fourth of the Auto-Lite workers walked out--supported by the American Workers Party, a "democratically organized revolutionary party" formed by A.J. Muste and Louis Budenz, who later converted to Catholicism and became an FBI informant during the post-war red scare—the AWP organized unemployed workers so they would not scab and surrounded the factory—the company got injunctions but the shop was still shut so on May 7, the company hired approximately 1,500 strikebreakers as replacement workers to re-open the plant and start production. The company also hired armed guards to protect the replacement workers, and the Lucas County sheriff's department deputized large numbers of special deputies (paid for by Auto-Lite) to assist the company's private security personnel. Additionally, Auto-Lite purchased $11,000 worth of tear and vomit gas munitions and stored them in the plant-- On the afternoon of Wednesday, May 23, the sheriff of Lucas County decided to take action against the picketers. In front of a crowd which now numbered nearly 10,000, sheriff's deputies arrested Budenz and four picketers. As the five were taken to jail, a deputy began beating an elderly man—there were days of pitched battles involving 6,000 strikers and 1,300 National Guard in “the Battle of Toledo 

 FDR sent Charles Phelps Taft, the son of William Howard Taft, as a mediator—the president of the company, Clement O. Miniger, was so worried that he surrounded his private house with armed guards and was arrested after local residents swore out complaints that he had created a public nuisance by allowing his security guards to bomb the neighborhood with tear gas— On May 29, The Toledo Central Labor Council continued to plan for a general strike. By now, 68 of the 103 unions had voted to support a general strike, and the council was seeking a vote of all its member unions on Thursday, May 31.intensive negotiations followed and an IBEW local settled first
Auto-Lite and FLU 18384 reached a [image: image15.jpg]


tentative agreement settling the strike on June 2, 1934. The union won a 5 percent wage increase, and a minimum wage of 35 cents an hour. The union also won recognition (effectively freezing out the company union), provisions for arbitration of grievances and wage demands, and a system of re-employment which favored (respectively) workers who had crossed the picket line, workers who struck, and replacement workers. Although Muste and Budenz advocated that the union reject the agreement, workers ratified it on June 3 
Within a year, Local #18384 had extended its forces into the Big Three, when the workers at Toledo Chevrolet, who had flooded into the local, organized a successful strike which gained the first de facto recognition of a union at any GM plant. Furthermore, the success of the 1935 Chevrolet strike relied on the efforts made by the workers of Toledo to pull out the workers at a number of other GM plants. A key moment came when GM moved dies out of the Toledo plant to put them in a non-union shop in Racine and the memory provoked the Flint sit-down--They were successful at several, including the Detroit, Flint, Norwood, and Cleveland Fisher Body plants as well as the Norwood and Atlanta Chevrolet plants.

One of the participants in the strike was Bob Travis, who became a leader in the UAW-Flint sit-down strike in December, 1936

At White Motor in Cleveland, Wyndham Mortimer helped organize The White Motor Union and in August 1933, it affiliated with the Auto Workers Union (AWU), an affiliate of the Communist Party-sponsored Trade Union Unity League—eventually Mortimer became an officer for the new UAW and a signer of the original UAW-GM contract--
http://www.marxists.org/history/etol/newspape/themilitant/1935/may-04-1935.pdf --front page of The Militant about the Toledo strike

http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=qeueq3AO2v4 (:54)—no sound newsreels of the military action during the strike

2. The San Francisco General Strike—May 9—July 6 (83 days) was the longshoremen’s strike, with Bloody Thursday on July 5—the issue was control of the hiring hall, which had historically been managed by the stevedoring companies and were very corrupt—the other problem was the Longshoremen’s Association of San Francisco, a company union started after an unsuccessful strike in 1919, and called the “Blue Book” which longshoremen had to hold in order to get work from the Waterfront employers Union—the conditions in the port were terrible, with some favorites getting steady work while the rest depended upon favors and cronyism at the hiring halls—by 1933, about 12,000 men joined the ILA which came to San Francisco to deal with grievances—with George Creel, of the San Francisco Regional Labor Board (and better-known as the recruiter of the “Four Minute Men” during WWI), as mediator, the ILA and the bosses reached an agreement with wage increases and joint control of the hiring halls—this agreement was voted down by the members who demanded union control—in 1934, the members held a rank-and-file convention of the ILA, set up demands and when negotiations failed, a strike was called for May 9—by May 11, the strike had not only spread to the whole west coast but unions in the maritime crafts also struck—on May 13, the Teamsters agreed not to haul any goods from the docks and the port was effectively shut down
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When the National Guard was sent in and federal troops at the Presidio were put on alert, the Central Labor Council, at the urging of Harry Bridges, called a general strike on July 14, which lasted for four days—on July 17, the National Guard moved in with machine guns and General Hugh Johnson of the NRA urged conservative union officers to “run these subversive influences out from its ranks like rats”-- the decision of the Teamsters on July 20 to give up the strike basically ended it for the ILA
Historian, George Rawick, in “Working Class Self-Activity,” Radical America (1969) recounts what Francis Perkins, FDR’s Secretary of Labor, told him: "At the first meeting of the Cabinet... in 1933, [FDR’s] financier and adviser, Bernard Baruch, and Baruch’s friend Gen. Hugh Johnson... came in with a copy of a book by [Giovanni] Gentile, the Italian Fascist theoretician [Mussolini’s Education Minister], for each member of Cabinet, we all read it with great care. Like the Italian fascists, Johnson was no friend of unions. San Francisco’s 1934 general strike exemplifies this. 
George Seldes sets the scene:
           “In the first three days, the city was in a holiday mood and there was no real suffering from lack of food deliveries. The strikers did not stop the rounds of milkmen.… The press [and]… paid radio orators, preached fear and hatred. News was distorted, invented, colored with propaganda; radio speeches were pure demagoguery. The villains were always the ‘Reds’ and ‘foreign agitators.’ The newspaper-reading citizenry and radio masses were quick to respond to hysterical suggestions, when as a climax Gen. Hugh Johnson, arriving as mediator, delivered… a senseless blast against labor which became the newspaper signal for hysteria: ‘When the means of food supply–milk for children–necessities of life to the whole people are threatened, that is bloody insurrection.’"

Eventually the union agreed to arbitration and won wage increases but not the closed shop or control of the hiring halls-

http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=dku-MFnIxaU –excellent documentary on the strike (3:20)

http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=OtiHww0gUng&feature=related (1:39) SF Strike—part 1—Pathe newsreel

http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=LaccCzN7WLc&feature=related (1:04) Part 2

http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=aOAFEi1Yc9M&feature=related (1:06)—introduction to the strike

http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=9hfqlRMqlJI&feature=related (3:53)—Pete Seeger talks about the strike and about Harry Bridges
http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=_4LzdsJ7KAo&feature=related (1:37) Labor on the March Part 5 newsreels discussing race—best introduction
Ballad of Harry Bridges http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=nf6MaUQZOTw&feature=related (2:21)
3. Minneapolis General Strike (May 16—August 21)—Teamster strike broke the open shop and Citizens alliance—shut down all commercial trucking into the city—led by Trotskyites who were expelled from the Teamsters in 1935—ironically, Floyd Olson sent in the National Guard to oppose the strike—began the organizing by the Teamsters of over-the-road drivers and led to the rise of Jimmy Hoffa—American Labor Party
1934 Strike (Part 1)
http://www.bing.com/videos/search?q=1934+Teamsters+Minneapolis+strike&view=detail&mid=29C2347B4E6213CD899829C2347B4E6213CD8998&first=0&FORM=LKVR1 (4:01)
Minneapolis strike (Part 2) 

http://www.bing.com/videos/search?q=1934+Teamsters+Minneapolis+strike&view=detail&mid=29C2347B4E6213CD899829C2347B4E6213CD8998&first=0&FORM=LKVR1 (7:01)

4. Southern Textile Strike (September 1- September 18)--the largest strike in the US up to this time, involving 400,000 workers from Maine and the other New England states to the southern states for 22 days-by 1933, Southern mills produced more than seventy percent of cotton and woolen textiles in more modern mills, drawing on the pool of dispossessed farmers and laborers willing to work for roughly forty percent less than their Northern counterparts. As was the rest of economic life, the textile industry was strictly segregated and drew only from white workers in the Piedmont. Before 1965, after passage of the Civil Rights Act broke the color line in hiring, less than 2% of textile workers were African American--the United Textile Workers, which had no more than 15,000 members in February, 1933, grew to 250,000 members by June, 1934, of whom roughly half were cotton mill workers. Textile workers also put tremendous faith in the NIRA to bring an end to the stretch-out, or at least temper its worst features. As one union organizer said, textile workers in the South saw the NIRA as something that "God has sent to them"—owners used the NIRA to justify cutting hours without raising wages and increased the stretch-out—strike started on September 1, 1934, and swept the country--Some workers converted their experience into a nearly messianic belief in the power of unionism to take them out of bondage. One labor official made the connection in Biblical terms: "The first strike on record was the strike in which Moses led the children of Israel out of Egypt. They too struck against intolerable conditions.”—the mill owners brought in the National Guard, hired “special deputies” and the union was not prepared and had no strike benefits or relief, and local authorities refused to provide for the strikers in their own little towns—the strike collapsed even though FDR appointed a mediation board, which stalled and delayed until the strike was beaten—their report, although showing some sympathy for the strikers, made no recommendations that would have raised wages, improved working conditions, or changed the stretch-out. It marked a clear victory for the mill owners.kept unionism out of the southern textile industry for another 50 years—a heroic, almost primeval strike by religious white workers seized by passion and inspiration
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The Sayesville (RI) Massacre--http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=gQn7olbW7l4    (1:00)  
OTHER IMPORTANT CAMPAIGNS
In all of these strikes, recognition was a key demand and in most cases, workers had to dump out a company union—here is an excellent list of articles about various union campaigns http://newdeal.feri.org/texts/browse.cfm?MainCatID=18 
· The Laclede Gas Workers strike in S. Louis—the first strike at a public utility after workers took over the company union lasted four months and was met with violent opposition (March 22, 1935—July 14—109 days) --http://gasworkersunion.com/strike-1935 

· Meat strike in Hamtramck, MI (July 27-1935) by Polish women  over high meat prices—unemployed workers’ councils—Mary Zuk becomes, briefly, a famous figure

· Strutwear Strike in Minneapolis—once again, the skilled knitters joined together to dump a company union (  32 weeks in the summer of 1935)

 http://www.tcdailyplanet.net/node/4860 
· Timber workers strike in Washington (April-June, 1935) http://depts.washington.edu/depress/timber_strike_news_bias.shtml 
· The Seattle newspaper strike of 1936. Journalists were white-collar workers, thus not usually union material. But the American Newspaper Guild had built a base in Seattle's newspaper rooms, including 35 members employed by the Seattle Post-Intelligencer, owned by newspaper tycoon William Randolph Hearst. When Hearst refused to negotiate, the writers walked out and quickly won the support of all the unions in Seattle, including the now powerful Teamsters. Three and a half months later Hearst settled, giving the Newspaper Guild its first victory and cementing Washington's reinvigorated reputation as a state where labor had genuine power
· 1935—CIO founded as The Council of Industrial Organizations, inside the AFL
· Mike Quill and the Transport Workers--August 10, 1935--Hundreds of Transport Workers Union members descend on a New York City courthouse, offering their own money to bail out their president, Mike Quill, and four other union leaders arrested while making their way through Grand Central Station to union headquarters after picketing the IRT offices in lower Manhattan 
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The Brotherhood of Sleeping Car Porters—certified by the National Mediation Board as the union for porters and maids, culminating almost 20 years of struggle, even though the union was officially founded in 1925—became the contemporary “black” union-- The AFL granted the BSCP an international charter that same year and, after protracted negotiations, the union won its first contract in 1937. Randolph used the BSCP and his own position in the AFL-CIO leadership as a wedge for breaking down racial segregation in the American labor movement. The BSCP also remained a source of inspiration and activism in African American communities, providing a training ground for future civil rights leaders like C.L. Dellums, E.D. Nixon, and of course Randolph himself.  http://newdeal.feri.org/nation/na35217.htm --
· 1936—“the punch heard around the world”—CIO establishes a separate federation and begins to challenge the craft unions to organize
· Flint Sit-Down Strike (1936-37)
· Jones and Laughlin v NLRB (Argued February 11-12, decided April 12)—found that the NLRA was constitutional, changing labor relations in the private sector
· February 28, 1938-Members of the Chinese Ladies’ Garment Workers’ Union in San Francisco’s Chinatown begin what is to be a successful four-month strike, at that time the longest strike in San Francisco history, for better wages and conditions at the National Dollar Stores factory and three retail outlets--The workers won a 5 percent raise; a forty-hour workweek; enforcement of health, fire, and sanitary conditions; and a guarantee that Golden Gate Manufacturing would provide work for a minimum of 11 months of the year to its workers. Despite these protections, one year after winning the contract, Golden Gate conveniently went out of business
 http://ccsfexhib.wordpress.com/2010/03/24/sue-ko-lee-and-the-national-dollar-stores-strike-of-1938/ 
The development of the CIO began in 1932 as John L. Lewis and the officers of some industrial unions within the AFL demanded expansion of the federation--—a huge change in the union structure—Council of Industrial Organizations was established in 1934 as a caucus within the AFL, and became the Council of Industrial Organizations after the Atlantic City convention in 1935—and the punch heard ‘round the world--the creation of the CIO was announced on November 9, 1936 and whether Lewis always intended to split the AFL over this issue is debatable--initially the CIO presented itself as only a group of unions within the AFL gathered to support industrial unionism, rather than a group opposed to the AFL itself. The AFL leadership, however, treated the CIO as an enemy from the outset, refusing to deal with it and demanding that it dissolve. The AFL’s opposition to the CIO, however, only increased the stature of the CIO and Lewis in the eyes of those industrial workers keen on organizing and disillusioned with the AFL’s ineffective performance. Lewis continued to denounce the AFL’s policies while the CIO offered organizing support to workers in the rubber industry who went on strike and formed the Steel Workers Organizing Committee (SWOC), in defiance of all of the craft divisions that the AFL had required in past organizing efforts, in 1936--In September 1936 the AFL suspended its member unions that had started the CIO
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While many popular histories credit John L. Lewis for the success of the CIO, and the growth of industrial union organizing, the Flint Sit-Down was the defining moment—it led to the first large industrial union contract, it established a method for winning recognition and it persuaded Myron Taylor, the president of US Steel, to sign a contract with SWOC--


March of Time on the CIO-- http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=2IsJZAknuIQ 

John L. Lewis testimony 

http://www.bing.com/videos/search?q=john+l+lewis&view=detail&mid=9B3CA1E64A965A812ABD9B3CA1E64A965A812ABD&first=0&FORM=LKVR3 (1:31)

John L. Lewis in 1940 speech on Centralia disaster

http://www.bing.com/videos/search?q=john+l+lewis&view=detail&mid=E4DE423CCF3CA1234358E4DE423CCF3CA1234358&first=0&FORM=LKVR1 (1:58)—great oratory
Lee Pressman, who had been as Assistant General Counsel of the AAA under Henry Wallace, then a counsel in both the WPA (under Harry Hopkins) and the Resettlement agency (under Rexford Tugwell) became the union's General Counsel and was one of the three signers of the UAW-GM first contract—Pressman was the General Counsel for the CIO until he was fired during the red scare in 1948—
The CIO became a separate federation in 1938 and the first union it chartered was The United Electrical Workers—CIO wins included

· The Flint UAW-GM contract (February, 1937)

· SWOC—U. S. Steel (March, 1937) and the Jones & Laughlin (know to Steelworkers as “Little Siberia”)
· UAW-Chrysler

· [image: image20.jpg]


The UAW finally organized Ford in 1941. 
· The Little Steel Strike (1937)--http://wn.com/steel_strike (45:00)—after US Steel signed a contract with SWOC, other steel companies, led by Tom Girdler of Republic Steel, held out, and workers struck some of the companies, involving 100,000 workers at 30 plants in 8 states--during the strikes, the companies lobbied local residents to put pressure on the strikers and their families. Numerous citizens formed committees, including the Mahoning Valley, Ohio Citizens' Committee, the Citizens' Law and Order League of Canton, Ohio, and the John Q. Public League of Warren, Ohio, to protest the strikers' actions. Little Steel brought in scab laborers to work the machines, while the sit-down strikers remained in the plants. The employers even used tear gas to drive the strikers out of the businesses. The governor of Ohio, Martin L. Davey, eventually sent troops in to break up the strike.
May 30, 1937—Memorial Day Massacre—at Republic steel in south Chicago,  home to largest arsenal and police force involved in the labor dispute, 1,500 SWOC members and their families were gathered at a park just a few blocks from the front gate of the mill for a march planned for the day--the officers panicked and opened fire on the unsuspecting crowd, as the dust settled ten protesters lay dead and 100 more struggling to compose themselves after receiving gunshot wounds. One steelworker later recounted, "I was in the war and I fought in France, but I never heard so many bullets as those coppers fired. Women and children were screaming all over the place. They were like a herd of cattle panic stricken. I ran till they got me. I saw one woman shot down and a policeman dragged her away"--after the incident, Little Steel’s public relation team sent out multiple reports justifying the actions of the Chicago police force. Reports began coming in claiming that the protestors were armed and planned to raid the mill and that the protestors were led by marijuana-smoking communists, according to Ahmed A. White in  "THE DRIVE TO ORGANIZE STEEL." The "Little Steel" Strike of 1937: Class Violence, Law, and the End of the New Deal.
· The SWOC, now known as the United Steel Workers of America, won recognition in Little Steel, which included Bethlehem Steel, Republic Steel, Youngstown Sheet and Tube, National Steel and Inland steel,  in 1941 through a combination of strikes and National Labor Relations Board elections in the same year, forced on the companies by the threat of the loss of war contracts.
· UE signed a national contract with General Electric in 1938, and then organized RCA, Westinghouse and GM’s Electrical Division
· Amalgamated Clothing Workers expanded national bargaining and its president, Sidney Hillman became a major political figure—“Clear it with Sidney”—
· Hague v. Committee for Industrial Organization, 307 U.S. 496 (1939), is a case decided by the United States Supreme Court. The case involved Jersey City, New Jersey Mayor Frank "Boss" Hague who had in 1937 used a city ordinance to prevent labor meetings in public places and stop the distribution of literature pertaining to the CIO's cause. He referred to them as "communist." District and circuit courts ruled in favor of the CIO which brought the suit against the mayor for these actions. Hague appealed to the Supreme Court which ruled against him and held that Hague's ban on political meetings violated the First Amendment right to freedom of assembly, and so the ordinances were void
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It is important for the early period not to underestimate the importance of the Communist Party, which was comprised of both US revolutionaries and recruits from the Third International.
         The Trade Union Educational League (TUEL) was established by William Z. Foster in 1920 as a means of uniting radicals within various trade unions for a common plan of action. The group was subsidized by the Communist International via the Communist Party of America from 1922, seeking to organize left wing "militants" within these unions with a view to transforming the unions themselves into revolutionary instruments The organization did not collect membership dues but instead ostensibly sought to both fund itself and to spread its ideas through the sale of pamphlets and circulation of a monthly magazine. After several years of initial success, the group was marginalized by the unions of the American Federation of Labor, which objected to its strategy of "boring from within" existing unions in order to depose sitting union leaderships. 
In 1929 the organization was transformed into the Trade Union Unity League (TUUL), which sought to establish radical dual unions in competition with existing labor organizations.  Despite his lifelong enmity towards dual unionism, Foster remained at the helm of the TUEL organization when it changed its name and tactics at its 1929 convention. This change of line was externally driven, Foster explained to Powers Hapgood of the United  Mine Workers at the time of the change, declaring "Powers, the Communist Party decided that policy. As a good Communist I just have to go along," according to Saul Alinsky.
The TUUL was founded at a convention held in Cleveland, Ohio, on August 31, 1929. This period in the Party's history has been called its "hey day" and is notable for Communists' unyielding antagonism to more moderate organizers, who were branded "social fascists." TUUL activists attempted to organize some of the most marginal populations of the working class, such as the unemployed, women, and Blacks in the racially segregated American South. 
The TUUL was dismantled in 1935 when the Comintern switched to the Popular Front strategy. CPUSA organizers then joined the industrial union movement under the Congress of Industrial Organizations, where they applied skills developed during the TUUL era and supported FDR in the 1936 election..


Anti-unionism—great video on professional scabs—

http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=VvXX3-dMCEY (5:06)  
CIVIL RIGHTS

It is essential to look at “civil rights” in a different way because the union movement was one which included women, blacks and immigrants in a “rights” campaign
, providing organizing and improvement at work, and not just politically --the CIO, as the best example, fought not only for industrial unionism but for unionism which blacks and women would be equal—

It is also important to look at the New Deal because FDR  worked with conservative southern Democrats, who had controlled the area since Reconstruction ended and who controlled Congress because of the seniority rules—so FDR

· The model communities of the TVA were strictly segregated

· Farm laborers and domestic servants were excluded from the social Security act—why should white families pay taxes on their black maids?

· Same exclusions on minimum wage legislation

· Lynching was not a federal crime
Most institutions, including the craft unions, were still segregated—a push to repatriate Mexicans—Asians lived in enclaves—one of the contentious issues of the period is how the federal programs accommodated segregation 

The Indian Reorganization Act of 1934—tried to restore the independence of tribes and to end the allotment policy of the Dawes Act—John Collier was named commissioner of Indian affairs
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New Negro Alliance-- (NNA) was a Washington, D.C. based organization founded in 1933 by mostly middle class blacks to use pickets, economic boycotts, and other direct action protests to promote civil rights. It sought to increase African American employment opportunities, especially in white collar positions and to challenge discriminatory employment practices. Although the NNA wasn't the first organization in the city's black community to use direct action protests to combat discrimination, it was the largest and most successful organization to that date to employ economic boycotts as its main tool for civil rights. 
The NNA began in August 1933 when John Aubrey Davis, a twenty-one year old Williams College graduate boycotted the Hamburger Grill, a white-owned business in a black neighborhood which had fired its three black employees, replacing them with white workers. John Davis gathered a group of black men and organized a picket and boycott of the restaurant on August 28. Within two days the Hamburger Grill rehired the three fired black employees. 

After the Hamburger Grill boycott, the NNA was formed. With John Davis, Belford V. Lawson, Jr., and M. Franklin Thorne as its leaders, the NNA launched campaigns such as "Don't Buy Where You Can't Work," and "Jobs for Negroes." Between December 1933 and 1937 the NNA published a weekly newspaper, New Negro Opinion, to help in its campaign for civil rights. 

Led by attorney and NNA founder, Belford Lawson, the NNA won a major legal victory in its lawsuit against the Sanitary Grocery Company which had challenged the organization's right to organize a boycott against it. The Washington, D.C. area grocery chain had 255 retail outlets including many in black neighborhoods, but refused to hire African Americans in any capacity. The U.S. Supreme Court ruled in New Negro Alliance v. Sanitary Grocery Company, Inc. (1938) that "those having a direct or indirect interest in the matters of employment have the freedom to take action against discrimination and peacefully persuade others,"  an opinion which was based on The Norris-LaGuardia Act of 1932--This win strengthened the NNA. 

The organization however could not mount successful boycotts against People's Drug Stores and the Safeway Grocery chain in 1940. Those defeats indicated that the local community was no longer willing to support boycotts as a civil rights tactic which meant the beginning of the NNA's demise. 

1936 OLYMPICS


A symbolic moment for the civil rights movement was the 1936 Summer Olympics, which were held in Berlin--Hitler was using the games to show the world a resurgent Nazi Germany. He and other government officials had high hopes that German athletes would dominate the games with victories (the German athletes achieved a "top of the table" medal haul). Meanwhile, Nazi propaganda promoted concepts of "Aryan racial superiority" and depicted ethnic Africans as inferior. 

Jesse  Owens, whose family had moved from Alabama to Cleveland as part of The Great Migration, and was an outstand athlete at Ohio State,  surprised many100m  by winning four gold medals: On August 3, 1936 he won the  sprint, defeating Ralph Metcalfe; on August 4, the long jump (later crediting friendly and helpful advice from Luz Long, the German competitor he ultimately defeated); on August 5, the 200m sprint; and, after he was added to the 4 x 100 m relay team, he won his fourth on August 9 (a performance not equaled until Carl Lewis won gold medals in the same events at the 1984 Summer Olympics).

Just before the competitions, Owens was visited in the Olympic village by Adi Dassler, the founder of the Adidas athletic shoe company. He persuaded Owens to use Adidas shoes, the first sponsorship for a male African-American athlete.
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TWO SLAIN, MANY WOUNDED
AS TROOPS FIRE INTO MOB





According to Albert Speer, a high level Nazi: “Each of the German victories, and there were a surprising number of these, made him [Hitler] happy, but he was highly annoyed by the series of triumphs by the marvelous colored American runner, Jesse Owens. People whose antecedents came from the jungle were primitive, Hitler said with a shrug; their physiques were stronger than those of civilized whites and hence should be excluded from future games.”


A second major athletic competition were the two fights between Joe Louis and Max Schmeling, who also took on the racial conflict appearance. In the first fight on June 19, 1936, Schmeling knocked out Louis in the 12th round. Among the attendees at Louis' defeat was Langston Hughes, a major figure in the Harlem Renaissance and noted literary figure. Hughes described the national reaction to Louis' defeat in these terms:

“I walked down Seventh Avenue and saw grown men weeping like children, and women sitting in the curbs with their head in their hands. All across the country that night when the news came that Joe was knocked out, people cried.” 

Conversely, the German reaction to the outcome was jubilant. Hitler contacted Schmeling's wife, sending her flowers and a message: "For the wonderful victory of your husband, our greatest German boxer, I must congratulate you with all my heart.”
By the time of the Louis–Schmeling rematch in 1938, Nazi Germany had taken over greater Austria in the Anschluss, heightening tensions between Germany and the other Western powers, and generating much anti-German propaganda in the American media. The German regime generated an onslaught of racially-charged propaganda of its own; much of it created by propaganda minister Joseph Goebbels centered on Schmeling's success in the boxing world. Schmeling did not enjoy being the focus of such propaganda. He was not a member of the Nazi Party and – although admittedly proud of his German nationality – denied the Nazi claims of racial superiority: "I am a fighter, not a politician. I am no superman in any way.” 
A few weeks before the rematch, Louis visited FDR at the White House. The New York Times quoted Roosevelt as telling the fighter, "Joe, we need muscles like yours to beat Germany.” 

         Louis destroyed Schmeling, knocking him out in the first round, setting off huge celebrations in Harlem and in black communities all across the country although Henry McLemore of the United Press called Louis "a jungle man, completely primitive as any savage, out to destroy the thing he hates."
Video of fight http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=rJGOADcmwS4 (3:38)

Documentary of Joe Louis and Max Schmeling http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=-Wbs73lRVHE (1:28)

 Louis later joined the Army in WWII, stating: "There are a lot of things wrong with America, but Hitler ain't gonna fix them."

National Negro Congress
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The first national convention of the National Negro Congress (NNC) took place in February of 1936 in Chicago. The NNC was formed to fill the void left by the NAACP’s reliance on a legal and lobbying strategy and would be more of an activist organization, engaging in pickets, protests and direct action to advance the cause of African American rights.

NNC leaders John P. Davis (left) and A. Phillip Randolph (right) in March, 1940.

The NAACP had often placed a greater emphasis on issues of concern to the black elite, while the NNC was based in the black working class and was composed of many local African American union leaders along with a significant section of the black intelligentsia.

The founding Congress contained a relatively small group of activist ministers. Two national board members of the NAACP, Roy Wilkins and Charles Hamilton Houston, also attended. The NAACP as an organization, however, boycotted the group’s formation, although a number of leaders of local chapters attended.

The NNC attracted members with political views across the spectrum, including Democrats, Republicans, socialists and communists. The NNC selected A. Phillip Randolph, the leader of the Brotherhood of Sleeping Car Porters, as its president and John P. Davis as executive secretary. Its headquarters was established in Washington, D.C.
Leonard Basey was out with co-workers on the evening of August 30, 1936 enjoying a respite from the work and barracks life in the Civilian Conservation Corps camp located at 26th and M Streets NE in Washington, D.C. The unit was doing the physical labor to build the infrastructure for the National Arboretum. Basey was part of a group of young enlistees in Company 1360 in camp NA-1-DC, an African American post with white officers.

That night, Basey was walking with five other men from the camp, who were laughing and joking loudly as they walked along M Street toward Bladensburg Road through a predominantly white neighborhood.

Later testifying that he received a phone call from someone disturbed by the noise, police officer Vivian H. Landrum left his home in the neighborhood and approached the youths near 17th and M Streets NE. Landry placed the group under arrest and walked them to a police call box near Bladensburg Road and M Street NE.

When Basey questioned the arrest Landry reportedly responded, “Shut up, and don’t give me too much lip, or I’ll fill you full of lead,” according to a companion’s later testimony reported in the Afro American.

It was then that he “grabbed Basey, who was standing sideways toward him, spun him around and shot him in the abdomen,” said Basey’s companion, according to the same article.

In the Spring of 1936, during a meeting held at the Metropolitan Baptist Church to call for freedom for the “Scottsboro Boys,” Davis called for expanding the cause to fight police brutality in the city.

According to Erik Gellman in Death Blow to Jim Crow, William Hastie, a Howard University professor, told the crowd,

It doesn’t matter whether a person is hanged by an unauthorized mob or by an organized mob known as the law.

Basey died September 1 at the Casualty Hospital at 3rd and B Streets SE. The Afro American initially reported as part of a headline, “Policeman Fires as Gang Demands his Prisoner.”

But the official story began to unravel as witnesses came forward.

In testimony before a coroner’s jury inquest on September 3, white witnesses testified that Landrum was surrounded and did not draw his gun until after the group reached the call box.

One 11-year-old white youth said “Basey had his arm drawn back as if to strike Landrum when he was shot,” according to the Afro American. But the youth admitted that Landrum and another white man had talked to him the following day about being a witness for the defense.
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When Landrum himself testified, he contradicted the white witnesses and admitted that the group did not surround him and he drew his service weapon as soon as the group was arrested.

NNC executive secretary John P. Davis and A. S. Pinkett, head of the local NAACP, immediately called for the district attorney to ask a grand jury to indict Landrum for the killing and for a police trial board to be convened to dismiss Landrum from the force.

But the case really began to take on a life of its own when the Afro American published its story September 12 under the headline “KILLER-COP FREE.”

The Afro printed a dramatic report that,

Lawrence Basey was the fortieth colored person shot to death by Metropolitan police since 1925. Every officer involved has been exonerated. Most of the victims were under 21 years of age.
Adam Lapin of the Washington bureau of the Daily Worker jumped on the story. The Afro shared their research with Lapin so he could detail the victims’ names, dates of death, ages, and officers involved.

Evidence came out during the inquest that Landrum had a past record of shooting at CCC workers and had beaten another African American some years before without justification.

The NNC held a protest meeting at the YMCA at 1816 12th Street NW attended by several hundred people. The NNC called for Landrum’s immediate suspension and for his indictment on murder charges. The group said that Landrum “requires the attention of a psychiatrist” because the officer believed that black people were inherently violent.

Despite the outcry, District Attorney Leslie C. Garnett refused to bring charges against Landrum before a grand jury, telling Lapin he was “not interested in the case,” according to the Chicago Defender.

A. S. Pinkett, the local NAACP secretary, said in a statement,

Thus we have the picture of a policeman arresting men for being disorderly, when there was no disorder; the shooting to death of one of them by the arresting officer; a meaningless verdict by a coroner’s jury and lastly the refusal by the District Attorney to lay the facts before a grand jury.
YE GODS! And colored persons are expected to have faith in their governmental machinery.

The unions continued to discriminate against minority membership. Samuel Gompers claimed that the AFL was not prejudiced, "it just wouldn't accept 'any nonassimilable race.'" The issue became a crucial one in the development of the CIO--many of the CIO unions, in particular the Packinghouse Workers, the United Auto Workers and the Mine, Mill and Smelter Workers made advocacy of civil rights part of their organizing strategy and bargaining priorities: they gained improvements for workers in meatpacking in Chicago and Omaha, and in the steel and related industries throughout the Midwest. The Transport Workers Union of America, led by Irish immigrant Mike Quill, which had strong ties with the Communist Party at the time, entered into coalitions with Adam Clayton Powell, Jr., the NAACP and the National Negro Congress to attack employment discrimination in public transit in New York City in the early 1940s
In 1941, a group of predominantly young African American activists organized to take on the challenge of integrating one of the most visible examples of job discrimination in the city: The Washington, DC Capital Transit public transportation system.

The 15-year campaign went through a period of highs and lows as the company, aided at times by the union representing its workers and the federal government, stubbornly clung to its racist practices before finally succumbing in 1955.

The District of Columbia never had Jim Crow seating on public transit (unlike neighboring Maryland and Virginia) dating back to fights Sojourner Truth and Sen. Charles Sumner waged in the 1860s, but almost everything else in Washington, DC was segregated, including schools, parks, swimming pools, movie theaters and restaurants. Perhaps even more important, good paying jobs were reserved for white men only, with few exceptions.

Prior to the US entry into World War II, a rapid expansion of the government and the related defense industry was bringing an end to the Great Depression.
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Jewel Mazique, a founder of the Capital Transit campaign, at a United Federal Workers meeting in 1942. Photo by John Collier, courtesy of the Library of Congress.

A. Phillip Randolph and Bayard Rustin (leading African American members of the Socialist Party) organized a “March on Washington” movement to demand desegregation of government and defense jobs scheduled for July 1, 1941. President Franklin Roosevelt tried desperately to head off the march and ultimately created a federal Fair Employment Practices Commission (FEPC) with oversight of the defense industry in return for cancellation of the march.

Following this development, a local campaign to desegregate employment spearheaded by a dynamic group of young African American activists who set up a “Washington Initiating Committee” of the National Conference on Negro Youth in the city in October 1941. The group initially planned to use direct pressure on companies and federal agencies.

Key participants included Thelma Dale (Washington Negro Youth Federation), Marie Richardson (United Transport Service Employees Union-Red Caps), Henry Thomas (United Construction Workers Organizing Committee) and Jewel Mazique (Delta Sigma Theta), all of whom became prominent African American organizers in the city.

The group selected as its first target the Capital Transit Company that provided streetcar and bus service throughout the District. The company refused to hire African Americans as operators with the management citing rampant racial prejudice in the city as an excuse. As many as 20% of the workforce were African Americans employed in the maintenance section of the company, but were concentrated in unskilled and semi-skilled jobs.

The committee began by soliciting letters to the company by the local NAACP and other organizations. Foreshadowing the Montgomery bus boycott by a dozen years, sixty workers at the Cook’s Waste Paper Factory at 59 Pierce Street NE added their disapproval and agreed to take any action necessary, including walking to work.

Company president E. D. Merrill responded with a flat-out refusal to consider breaking the barrier and his response triggered a stepped up campaign. The group continued to gain endorsement of its goals and in April 1942, the campaign was given another boost when Walter White, national secretary of the National Association for the Advancement of Colored People (NAACP) condemned Capital Transit’s hiring policies.

In August, Amalgamated Association of Street & Electric Railway Employees Division 689 president J. G. Bigelow sought and received a letter from the union’s International president W. D Mahon that restated the union’s policy against discrimination. Bigelow, considered a moderate on racial issues by the standards of the times, defeated old guard president William F. Sims in 1940.

Mahon’s letter concluded, “I realize how some of your membership, being Southerners, feel on this matter, but you must take into consideration the fact that we are now engaged in a war in which the colored man is called upon to do the same line of duty that the white man is called upon to do, and any discrimination that would attract public attention at this time would be very detrimental, and especially coming out of Washington.”
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Committee on Jobs for Negroes in Public Utilities Dec. 1942.William S. Johnson, chair (center) & Ralph Matthews from the Afro (leaning over). All rights reserved © Afro-American.

The issue began to take on national importance as African American newspapers across the country began covering the issue.

A broader group was organized August 15, 1942 as The Committee on Jobs for Negroes in Public Utilities by its chair, William S. Johnson (Hotel & Restaurant Employees Local 209) and other local African American union leaders and activists.

The committee set up shop at 2001 11th Street NW (currently occupied by a branch of the Industrial Bank) after initially holding meetings at the offices of the Afro-American and the International Workers Order.

Sponsors were solicited that included both local and national representatives ranging from Charles Hamilton Houston (former NAACP counsel), Ralph Matthews (Baltimore Afro-American), Mary McLeod Bethune (National Council of Negro Women) to Communist Party members like Doxey Wilkerson. Several members of Congress were also sponsors of the committee.

The broader committee shifted strategy and began organizing to pressure the federal FEPC to take action against Capital Transit and force the company to desegregate.

The expansion of government meant thousands of new workers in the city at a time when young men were being drafted into the armed forces. This resulted in a shortage of streetcar and bus operators and Capital Transit advertised daily for new operators. This provided an opening that the committee exploited by taking out a large advertisement in the Washington Post calling for the hiring of “qualified negro operators” and for a mass meeting Nov. 3, 1942.
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Hundreds rally to demand Capital Transit hire African American streetcar & bus operators, Nov. 3, 1942. Photo by Gordon Parks, courtesy of the Library of Congress

The meeting was timed to precede hearings on Capital Transit hiring policies by the FEPC. Hundreds came out to hear Rev. Adam Clayton Powell (then city councilman in New York City), Houston (then in private practice) and Henry Rhine of the Washington Industrial Council, CIO and others speak at the Vermont Avenue Baptist Church, 1630 Vermont Ave. NW.

The FEPC held hearings Nov. 23 and issued an order Nov. 30 that Capital Transit bring its policies into compliance with federal guidelines. The company president E. D. Merrill again responded that the time wasn’t right because company operations could be disrupted.

However, on February 1, 1943 the company hired Bernard Simmons, an African American, as a streetcar trainee. When Simmons was assigned to the Benning Road barn (Trinidad Division once located at 15th & Benning Road NE) for on-the-job training, a white operator refused to train him. Fifteen other white operators threatened to turn in their traps (quit working), according to the company. The company offered Simmons a janitorial job and when he refused, they fired him.

Meanwhile, to address the shortage of operators, the company began training white women to operate streetcars and shortly afterwards put them into service.
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Women streetcar operators shown at 14th St. barn, June, 1943. Photo by Esther Bubley, courtesy of the Library of Congress.

The committee renewed its offensive in the spring of 1943 with a week of action beginning May 3 in advance of a new FEPC hearings scheduled later in the month. The week began by picketing the company headquarters at 3600 M Street NW with a “blue ribbon” group of prominent national leaders.

Other pickets were set up at busy intersections throughout the city and thousands of buttons that read, “I support” were also distributed at 14th & NY Ave.. 

The wartime “March on Washington,” led by an Elks band, was held May 7th beginning at 10th & U St. NW and ending at Franklin Park (14th & I St NW). Estimates of the crowd ranged from 800 by police to 3,500 by the Afro-American newspaper.
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Marchers heard Rep. Vito Marcantonio (ALP-NY) declare, “If colored people…can drive tanks right into the heart of battle in Tunisia, they can drive streetcars and buses here.” On Sunday, May 9 over 100 black and white ministers at congregations across the city condemned the company’s hiring policies in their sermons.

Although they didn’t know it, the decision to rely solely on pressuring the federal government would prove to be flawed.

The FEPC postponed the May 18 hearing after a challenge was made to its jurisdiction over Capital Transit. In July the full FEPC voted to tell the company that they “expected affirmative action” to end discrimination and would call a public hearing August 9 if the company did not comply. The company continued to stall while the FEPC tried to negotiate.

In January 1944, the company discovered it had hired an African American woman, Sarah Grayson of 2231 Ontario Road NW. It promptly fired her, despite her five months of unblemished service 

“I made no effort to conceal my racial identity. The question just never came up,” Grayson said, according to the Afro-American.

Grayson found it amusing that her co-workers would make disparaging remarks about African Americans while trying to talk her into a date. She was discovered when a neighbor applied for a job at the company and was turned down. According to the Afro newspaper, the neighbor allegedly told the company, “I don’t see why you can’t hire me when you have a colored girl working for you.”

Hopes were raised in 1944 by two events, the integration of operators at the Philadelphia transit system at gunpoint by the federal government and the appointment of Houston to the federal FEPC.

Under orders by the FEPC, the Philadelphia Transportation Company began promoting African Americans to operators. In August 1944, white operators staged a seven-day wildcat strike protesting the promotions. Philadelphia contained vital defense plants and the federal government seized the company, ordered strikers back to work and threatened to strip any men refusing of the draft deferments and job availability certificates for the duration of WW II and backed it up with the US Army.

http://washingtonspark.wordpress.com/tag/atu-local-689/ 
WOMEN’S MOVEMENT

The main activity was political pressure for the passage of The Equal Rights Amendment—in 1923, in Seneca Falls for the celebration of the 75th anniversary of the 1848 Woman’s Rights Convention, Alice Paul introduced the "Lucretia Mott Amendment," which read: "Men and women shall have equal rights throughout the United States and every place subject to its jurisdiction." The amendment was introduced in every session of Congress until it passed in reworded form in 1972 but there were not enough states to ratify the amendment, passing in only 30 of the 38 states needed
One article is titled “1930s, America - Feminist Void?” http://www.loyno.edu/~history/journal/1988-9/moran.htm because of the lack of progress even after passage of the 19th Amendment—there was a conflict in state laws because some offered special protections to women while others specifically restricted women’s rights—the 1930s brought apple-sellers to city street corners and breadlines to urban charity houses so economy, federal forces concentrated on bringing Americans back to work--or, more accurately, bringing American men back to work. For society viewed working women as un-American money grubbers, stealing jobs from men who needed them to support their families. Throughout the 1930s, the sexist request that women refrain from entering the realm of the employed to solve the men's unemployment problem came from labor unions, state and federal governments, and employers alike. Efforts were made to remove married women from the workforce. A 1932 American anti-nepotism law for government workers stated that only one spouse could work. While the law did not specifically state that the wife should be the one discharged, three out of every four who were dismissed under the law were female. Mrs. Samuel Gompers proclaimed, "A home, no matter how small, is large enough to occupy [a wife's] mind and time."  She called women working outside the home "unnatural" and chided them for taking jobs from men who needed them
Senate hearings in 1931 revealed that the Women's Party supported the Equal Rights Amendment as a protection from the current discrimination against women in salary, hiring and education. Listing approximately 1,000 discriminatory state laws -- including laws in 11 states which gave a husband control over his wife's wages the party argued against those who the ERA would weaken protective legislation.  Such legislation often restricted the number of hours a woman could work, or the type of labor she could perform, making her less competitive in the industrial workforce
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In 1936, the House Subcommittee favored the ERA for the first time and endorsed the amendment.  In 1938, the Senate judiciary Committee reported it onto the floor. During the 1940 presidential race, the ERA became an election issue for the first time when the Republican Party offered its support to the cause. But opposition to the idea of equal rights far outweighed the meager support it received.


At the same time, women were active in political movements—the Women’s Brigade during the Flint sit-down was a major cause, even if historian initially minimized its importance for sexist and political reasons--The first big sit-down of a mainly female workforce involved cigar workers in Detroit. There were 4,000 women, most of them Polish, working in six shops. Their grievances—confirmed by a fact-finding commission—included working six and seven days a week for a pittance, poor ventilation causing women to faint, and inadequate toilet facilities.

Management had told workers at Bernard Schwartz, makers of R.G. Dunn cigars, to form a committee to present their concerns. On Jan. 7, 1937, Schwartz fired the entire committee. By Feb. 16 a sit-down was in progress. On Feb. 19, some 2,500 cigar rollers were sitting down.

Just as the Women’s Emergency Brigade in Flint had to win over irate wives, so too did the cigar strike have to deal with raging husbands, but the spouses came around. By March 5 strikers at two plants were leading a victory march of 1,000 people through the Polish community.

On March 20, however, Detroit Mayor Couzens launched a counterattack. Detroit’s police broke down the doors of the Bernard Schwartz plant, dragging the fighting women out by their arms, clothing and hair. Police beat sympathizers, even throwing a pregnant woman off her porch. Three days later, 200,000 people protested in Cadillac Square. Feeling labor’s outrage, Michigan Gov. Frank Murphy called the two sides together on April 22. The next day every cigar shop in Detroit had a union contract.

These women cigar workers had, meanwhile, inspired other women in Detroit. Women led takeovers at Ferry-Morse Seed and Yale and Towne Lock.

The retailer equivalent of Wal-Mart of those days was Woolworth’s. On Feb. 27, from a balcony of the Woolworth chain’s four-story establishment at Woodward and Grand River, an organizer for the Hotel Employees and Restaurant Employees (HERE) blew a whistle and yelled, “Strike! Strike!” Immediately, women servers stopped serving and cash registers went silent.

When the store manager pulled the workers into a huddle, his pleas that they end their strike were met with a resounding, “No!” The daring action made national news. Two days later a second Detroit store was taken, and HERE threatened to strike all 40 Woolworth’s in the area. After seven days inside, the youthful women had won raises, seniority rights, shorter hours, company-provided uniforms and future hiring through the union.

The fever spread, as department store workers throughout Detroit and across the country struck for and won union recognition. Now there was proof that service workers could wield the sit-down weapon as effectively as factory workers.
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It was not only in the workplace that the sit-down became the weapon of choice. In many cities families on relief sat down in government offices to demand better treatment. In San Antonio they were led by the young Emma Tenayuca, described by Time magazine as “a slim, vivacious labor organizer with black eyes and a Red philosophy” known by “everyone in San Antonio as ‘La Pasionaria de Texas.’” Frequently jailed, Tenayuca led many labor struggles, including a strike at the Finck cigar factory. One key demand of her Workers Alliance was the right to strike without fear of deportation.

Tenayuca is best known for her leadership in the 1938 pecan shellers strike. San Antonio was the world pecan capital. Mexican women worked 70 hours a week for as little as 30 cents a day picking nut meat from shells by hand. The 147 shops, where 12,000 workers produced 21 million pounds of shelled pecans per year, were closed by the strike--Because it advocated her passion for minority rights, Tenayuca joined the Communist Party in 1936--in 1938 she married organizer Homer Brooks. Then, less than a year later, she was scheduled to speak at a small Communist Party meeting at the Municipal Auditorium permitted by San Antonio Mayor Maury Maverick. A crowd of 5,000 attacked the auditorium with bricks and rocks, "huntin' Communists." Police helped Tenayuca escape from the mob, but she was blacklisted and forced to move out of San Antonio.

http://www.workers.org/2008/us/womens_history_month_0403/ 
The Southern Tenant Farmers Union (SFTU) —The lives of sharecroppers deteriorated even further as a result of the Agricultural Adjustment Act of 1933. Landowners were paid either not to plant, or to plow under existing crops to raise prices. Planters were to give a portion of the money to tenants for loss of livelihood, but the tenants were often left with no restitution or crops to help pay debts owed to planters. 

The SFTU started in Tyronza, Arkansas in July 1934 by eleven black and white—some of whom had been Klan members-- tenant farmers and Socialist Party members, one of the first integrated labor unions in the United States --some historian give Norman Thomas credit (or blame) for setting it up and claim that the “S” stood for “socialist” and not for “southern--originally, the STFU was formed to protest the eviction of twenty-three farming families on a plantation near Tyronza-- the tenant farmers had been evicted by landowners, who were cutting production under the Agricultural Assistance Act—a tenant farmer (who gives a fixed amount of produce for the use of the land) was one step below a sharecropper (who had to give a percentage) but the system was a reflection of the control of freed slaves after Reconstruction--10,000 members and integrated— the original AAA required that 50% of any money be given to the tenant/sharecropper whose land was plowed up but the big farmers found ways to avoid these payments—began to displace the sharecroppers--the union was active in Arkansas, Missouri and Texas and spread into the southeastern states and to California, sometimes affiliating with larger national labor federations.tied to Socialist Party—fundamentalist religion and local folkways were important, and became a model for the civil rights movement because the SFTU was open to all races—
Arkansas farmers had been though a flood in 1927 and a drought in 1930-31—led by     H(arry) L(eland) Mitchell, a former sharecropper who operated a dry cleaners and had become a socialist—
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The STFU was unique among unions in “encouraging members to leave,” helping them find a life outside tenant farming. 

H.L. Mitchell was born on June 14, 1906, to Maude Ella Stanfield and James Young Mitchell, a tenant farmer and sometime preacher in Halls, Tennessee. Mitchell attended school sporadically while working various jobs to help support his family. He sharecropped, worked in a clothing store, and ran a one-pump gas station. He finally graduated from Halls High School in 1925and  married Lyndell “Dell” Carmack on December 26, 1926, settling on the Carmack farm to sharecrop while his wife taught school. She earned $60 a month teaching school, and Mitchell netted $185 from sharecropping in 1927. He was sharecropping on land owned by his in-laws, with earnings higher than the average sharecropper, who generally ended a growing season owing money to planters/landlords for food, seed, and other necessities. His brief sharecropping experience led Mitchell to consider the merits of the Socialist Party set forth in the “Little Blue Books” published by E. Haldeman-Julius of Girard, Kansas.

By 1927, Mitchell’s parents were living in Tyronza (Poinsett County), where his father operated a successful barbershop. His father encouraged him to come to Arkansas to farm the fertile land. After seeing the type of housing he could expect to live in as an Arkansas sharecropper, Mitchell decided to remain in Tennessee, “where things were more civilized.” His father then suggested that Mitchell take over the clothes-pressing machine in his barbershop. Mitchell moved to Arkansas in 1928, prospering in the dry-cleaning business.

Mitchell developed a close friendship with Clay East, owner of a gas station in Tyronza. East devised a plan for the stations to stagger the days they were open, so each only operated two days a week plus Saturday. Mitchell told his friend the plan had merit and was a good socialist  idea, offering the “Little Blue Books” as evidence, guiding East towards socialism. The corner of Main Street occupied by Mitchell and East’s businesses became known as “Red Square” due to their socialist beliefs.
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Got help from Lucien Koch at Commonwealth College, known as a communist-supported worker education center—for several years, the opposition was strong and violent but by 1936, especially with the presidential election coming, former New Deal staff people like Gardner “Pat” Jackson, who had left the Department of Agriculture because it sided with the planters rather than the tenants, initiated a campaign among New Dealers in Washington to focus attention on the plight of the croppers. The La Folette Committee investigation of free speech and the rights of labor sprang, in great part, from Jackson’s campaign to halt the violence prompted by the establishment of the STFU, and the union soon garnered some financial support from outside the South. Jackson eventually became an anti-communist in the CIO in the 1930s and 40s--
The STFU faced enormous legal and extralegal violence and repression precisely because of its interracial nature and its attack on the longstanding exploitative agricultural system of the South.  In Arkansas, the landlords organized a terror campaign with “riding bosses,” who hunted down union organizers “like runaway slaves” (Leuchtenburg, p. 138)—the ladnlords even complained that the sharecroppers thought the government was going t5o give them 40 acres and a mule--Union members and organizers were often harassed by planters who invaded union meetings.  They also faced local police who arrested them on various charges or from terror groups who assaulted them and repeatedly threatened lynching and other forms of violence.  This situation made the STFU far more dependent than Northern industrial unions on outside funding and occasional safe refuge for its organizers.
         Nonetheless, the SFTU briefly thrived. Rallies and meetings, heavily influenced by the Baptist church to which most black and white cropper and farming families belonged, were revivalist affairs, complete with union songs, skits, and addresses. Because of the church influence, many women became deeply involved in the union’s activities-- the STFU was unique among unions in “encouraging members to leave,” helping them find a life outside tenant farming. 
The SFTU also had a troubled relationship with the (CIO).  Like the STFU, the CIO embraced a more inclusive, anti-racist alternative to the American Federation of Labor.  Many in the urban, industrial union dominated CIO never understood or accepted a labor organization comprised of agricultural workers.  The STFU joined the CIO in 1937 but withdrew a year later. The SFTU declined by the early 1940s as national attention focused on the coming world war, radicals were driven out of union leadership positions, and New Deal programs which encouraged the mechanization of farming reduced the need for sharecropping and tenant farming.
Mitchell was one of the co-founders, serving as executive secretary for eight years. The STFU was renamed the National Farm Labor Union, and its offices moved to Washington DC from Memphis in 1948. Mitchell’s wife, Lyndell, chose not to go to Washington, so they divorced, and Mitchell married Dorothy Dowe, another STFU officer, in 1951.

Mitchell organized other unions, including the Amalgamated Meat Cutters (part of the AFL-CIO), and the National Agricultural Workers Union. He remained active in labor organizations, including the historic STFU, until his death on August 1, 1989, in Montgomery, Alabama. 
http://encyclopediaofarkansas.net/encyclopedia/entry-detail.aspx?entryID=1717 


There are some outstanding sites, by state, of the SFTU
http://encyclopediaofarkansas.net/encyclopedia/entry-detail.aspx?entryID=35 

The history of the tenant farmers
1. Erskine Caldwell, the son of a minister from Moreland, GA wrote Tobacco Road (1932) about a family of sharecroppers in Georgia—it was made into a Broadway play and ran for 8 years--
2. [image: image35.jpg]


Margaret Bourke-White—Have You Seen their Faces with text by Erskine Caldwell-- http://xroads.virginia.edu/~class/am485_98/coe/faces.html 
3. James Agee and Walker Evans—Let us Now Praise Famous Men, which was written for Fortune Magazine but suppressed and not published until 1940

4. Frazier Hunt’s series in the New York World-Telegram (1935) in which Hunt compared the sharecroppers to coolies working on the railroad in Manchuria, “except that in China I have never seen children in the fields . . . These people seemed to belong to another land than the America I knew and loved.” (quoted Leuchtenburg, p. 137)

Another group who were even below the sharecroppers and tenant farmers were the migrant workers, who were “tractored” off their farms and became “Arkies,” who migrated to California—by the end of the 1930s, one million migrants went to California--
SAUL ALINSKY

As a young man born in Chicago to immigrant parents, Alinsky wanted to be an archeologist, except "Archaeologists were in about as much demand as horses and buggies. All the guys who funded the field trips were being scraped off Wall Street sidewalks,” so he began to work part-time as an organizer for the CIO in the Yards—the packinghouses of Chicago which had been exposed in The Jungle. The Union Stock Yard & Transit Co., or The Yards, was the meatpacking district in Chicago, starting in 1865. The district was operated by a group of railroad companies that acquired swampland and turned it to a centralized processing area. It operated in the New City community area of Chicago, Illinois years, helping the city become known as "hog butcher for the world. From the Civil War until the 1920s and peaking in 1924, more meat was processed in Chicago than in any other place in the world—in 1921, the stockyards employed 40,000 people--Two thousand of these worked directly for the Union Stock Yard & Transit Co. and the rest worked for companies such as meatpackers who had plants in the stockyards

The CIO assisted in 1936 in the establishment of the local Packinghouse Workers Organizing Committee (PWOC), and took aim immediately at Armour Company, one of the most important industries in the neighborhood.  The PWOC brought a unity to the neighborhood that overrode some of the previously divisive ethnic and religious rivalries – in spite of a tremendous amount of red-baiting based in part on the important involvement of Communists in the CIO.

In 1939, Alinsky founded The Back of the Yards Neighborhood Council (BYNC), a cooperative effort between Alinsky and Joseph Meegan, the manager of the Chicago Park District's Davis Square Park, that culminated in a first meeting of the new organization in July, 1939. Alinsky and Meegan shared a distaste for traditional social workers and settlement houses, including the University of Chicago Settlement House located in the stockyards district.  They believed in identifying and involving neighborhood residents as leaders 
[image: image36.png]



Alinsky and Meegan saw this new community organization as one that would cooperate and extend the efforts of the PWOC and labor organizing into all aspects of community life, outside of employment.  The community and the union thus formed an alliance --the union addressed community-wide issues outside of the salaries and security of the workers, and the BYNC took on the cause of the PWOC as its most important initial endeavor.  The early days of the BYNC were very much devoted to the PWOC, which continued to aim its forces against Armour and its defiance of the landmark 1935 Wagner Act allowing the formation of labor unions and requiring them where workers voted for them.  The day before the first meeting of the BYNC (July 14, 1939), Herb March, the head of the PWOC, was shot at, and three days later, a mass meeting in support of the PWOC included on the stage John L. Lewis, the controversial national CIO founder, and Bishop Sheil, the Chicago clergyman who faced criticism by the church hierarchy for his support of the CIO-led labor movement.

 
In addition to this community-labor alliance, the BYNC was aided by the rise of a new breed of priests in the neighborhood, at a time when the priesthood was a popular career for many male Catholic Chicagoans.

Alinsky became possibly the first “community organizer,” founding the Industrial Areas Foundation while organizing the Woodlawn neighborhood, and trained organizers and assisted in the founding of community organizations around the country. In Rules for Radicals (his final work, published in 1971 one year before his death), he addressed the 1960s generation of radicals, outlining his views on organizing for mass power. In the opening paragraph of the book Alinsky writes, "What follows is for those who want to change the world from what it is to what they believe it should be. The Prince was written by Machiavelli for the Haves on how to hold power. Rules for Radicals is written for the Have-Nots on how to take it away.”
Chicago history of The Yards http://www.encyclopedia.chicagohistory.org/pages/99.html 

Good article on this movement http://newdeal.feri.org/survey/40c22.htm 
The Catholic Worker Movement
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The Catholic Worker movement was founded in 1933 by Dorothy Day, a veteran left-wing journalist and Catholic convert, at the urging of Peter Maurin, an itinerant French worker-scholar (and illegal immigrant) to become a  collection of autonomous communities of Catholics and their associates, whose aim is to "live in accordance with the justice and charity of Jesus ChrisThe paper The Catholic Worker was first sold in New York City, at a Communist Party May Day rally in Union Square, for a penny a copy, in 1933.It is best known for houses of hospitality located in run-down sections of many cities, though a number of Catholic Worker centers exist in rural areas. Food, clothing, shelter and welcome are extended by unpaid volunteers to those in need according to the ability of each household. In 1995 there were 134 Catholic Worker communities, all but three in the United States.
Dorothy Day was a city woman, a Bohemian as well as a pioneer in the "engaged journalism" of the Left. She was born in New York City, grew up there and in Oakland, California, and Chicago before returning as a young adult to New York and a staff assignment a t the daily Socialist Call. She worked on The Liberator staff and was acting editor of The Masses when it was closed by order of Attorney General Palmer during the Red Scare after World War I. Dorothy was jailed for picketing President Wilson's White House for the women's vote and participated in a hunger strike at Occoquan Prison. Her friends and fellow workers were socialists, anarchists and communists. 

Woody Guthrie. A better World A-Coming. 

http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=aQLzZ1zlkGo&feature=related (3:08)
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